UNITED
NATIONS E

. . Distr.
Economic and Social GENERAL
Councill

E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
28 August 1997

Oiginal: ENG.ISH

COWM SSI ON ON HUMAN RI GHTS

SUB- COMM SSI ON ON PREVENTI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AND
PROTECTI ON OF M NORI TI ES

Forty-ninth session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 26t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Pal ais des Nations, Geneva,
on Friday, 22 August 1997, at 10 a.m

Chai r man: M. BENGOA
later: Ms. WARZAZI

CONTENTS

PREVENTI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AGAI NST AND THE PROTECTI ON OF M NORI Tl ES
(conti nued)

FREEDOM OF MOVEMENT:
(a) THE RI GHT TO LEAVE ANY COUNTRY, | NCLUDI NG ONE'S OAN, AND TO RETURN
TO ONE' S OAN COUNTRY, AND THE RI GHT TO SEEK ASYLUM FROM
PERSECUTI ON

(b) HUMAN RI GHTS AND POPULATI ON DI SPLACEMENTS

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the Oficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Palais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the
Sub- Conmi ssion at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendumto
be issued shortly after the end of the session

GE. 97-13706 (E)



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26

page 2

CONTENTS (conti nued)

THE REALI ZATI ON OF ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS:

(a)
(b)
(¢)
(d)

THE | NTERNATI ONAL ECONOM C ORDER AND THE PROMOTI ON OF HUMAN RI GHTS
THE REALI ZATI ON OF THE RI GHT TO DEVELOPMENT
THE QUESTI ON OF TRANSNATI ONAL CORPCRATI ONS

THE REALI ZATI ON OF THE RI GHT TO EDUCATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EDUCATI ON | N
HUMAN RI GHTS (conti nued)

THE ADM NI STRATI ON CF JUSTI CE AND HUMAN RI GHTS:

(a)
(b)

(¢)

(d)

QUESTI ON OF HUVAN RI GHTS AND STATES OF EMERGENCY

APPLI CATI ON OF | NTERNATI ONAL STANDARDS CONCERNI NG THE HUMAN RI GHTS
OF DETAI NED JUVEN LES AND THE JUDI Cl AL PROTECTI ON OF CHI LDREN

GROSS AND MASSI VE VI OLATI ONS CF HUMAN RI GHTS AS AN | NTERNATI ONAL
CRI ME

JUVENI LE JUSTI CE



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 3

The neeting was called to order at 10.20 a.m

PREVENTI ON OF DI SCRI M NATI ON AGAI NST AND THE PROTECTI ON OF M NORI Tl ES
(agenda item 8) (continued) (E CN. 4/Sub.2/1997/18)

1. M. GOONETILLEKE (Cbserver for Sri Lanka) said that his del egation
concurred with the Sub-Conmi ssion's decision to revise the title of the agenda
item concerning the protection of mnorities. The introduction of the word
“against” was significant in the context of the collective endeavour to focus
on the specific issues involved in the question. The report of the Working
Group on Mnorities on its third session (E/ CN 4/ Sub. 2/1997/18) reflected

not abl e progress froma theoretical to a pragmatic approach to protection

i ssues.

2. In his delegation's view, the dichotony between the concept of mnority
rights and the enphasis on the rights of persons belonging to mnorities nust
not be allowed to vitiate the debate on mnority protection, for the principle
of universality and indivisibility of all human rights lay at the heart of the
i nternational human rights system which extended protection to al

i ndi vidual s alike. Furthernore, msconceptions traditionally associated with
the notion of mnority protection should be dispelled. Too much enphasis
shoul d not be placed on any perceived collective rights. The current thinking
within the Working Group on Mnorities had been in consonance with the

rel evant provisions of the Declaration on the Rights of Persons Belonging to
Nati onal or Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic Mnorities and the Vienna

Decl arati on and Programme of Action. Mnority groups were not recogni zed as
entities entitled to collective rights by those decl arati ons and ot her

rel evant international human rights instrunents.

3. The principle of equality before the | aw and equal protection under the
| aw shoul d be accepted as a neasure safeguarding the rights of individuals,

i ncl udi ng persons belonging to mnorities. The equality provisions of the
Constitution of Sri Lanka, for exanple, contained safeguards agai nst

di scrimnation, though affirnmative action in respect of vul nerable groups was
permtted. The ongoing constitutional reformexercise was in part intended to
expand and strengthen existing human rights protection provisions.

4, Restraint on the part of United Nations nechani sns was desirable where
encour agenent of cross-border affiliation was concerned. A cautious approach
m ght di ssuade a nminority group of one country fromexploiting such
affiliation purely for political ends, especially when the group with whomit
claimed affinities was nunmerically larger than the majority or even the tota
popul ati on of the country concerned.

5. It was equally inportant to protect the rights of “mnorities within
mnorities”. There had been a number of instances where the rights of persons
bel onging to nunerically weaker mnorities had been viol ated by groups

bel onging to nunerically larger mnorities. The forced expul sion of the

Musl i m popul ati on fromthe Northern Province of Sri Lanka and the attacks on
Muslimvillages and on places of worship by the Liberation Tigers of Taml
Eel am were a case in point. That group not only systematically commtted
violations of human rights and hunanitarian | aw agai nst mnority groups in the
Northern and Eastern Provinces, but was al so engaged in dissem nating fal se



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 4

propaganda and bl am ng others. M. Eide had drawn attention to the irony
wher eby such groups, who thenselves flouted humanitarian standards, addressed
human rights foruns concerning violations by others. Hi s del egation hoped
that all those points would be taken into consideration in the ongoing
endeavours concerning mnority protection in the Wrking Goup on Mnorities,
t he Sub- Comm ssion and the Comm ssion on Hunan Ri ghts.

6. M . BEREZNY (Observer for the Russian Federation) said that dozens of
nati onal and ethnic mnorities lived in the Russian Federation, and that a

| egal base now existed for the protection of the rights of nationa
mnorities, first and forenost through dissenination of internationa
standards in the Russian Federation, which had acceded to the framework
Convention for the protection of national mnorities. Mmnority rights were
protected under the Constitution, the Ctizenship Act, the Education Act and
t he National Languages of the Russian Federation Act. The new Crimnal Code
provi ded for the inposition of serious sanctions on those discrimnating
against citizens on racial, national and other grounds. The year 1996 had
seen the adoption of the concept of a State policy vis-a-vis nationalities,
and of the National and Cul tural Autonony Act. |In application of that Act,
nati onal and cul tural autonony had al ready been granted to the German and
Tatar mnorities. The Governnment was al so inplenenting federal programmes for
the Ukrainian mnorities and the Finno-Ugric, Turkic and other peoples.

7. Unfortunately, the generally unfavourable econom c situation inmpeded the
i mpl enmentati on of those progressive and denocratic laws. Conpliance with its
own and with its international obligations was the hardest task currently
faci ng Russi an society.

8. The question of minorities was one of the nost conplex issues, not only
in donestic policy but also at international level. Mre and nore often, the
position of mnorities ceased to be a humanitarian i ssue and becane one of

mai nt enance of peace and security and friendly rel ations between nations.
Doubl e standards and an ad hoc approach were unacceptable in that connection
Hi s del egation drew attention to the situation in the Commonweal th of

I ndependent States (CIS) and the Baltic States, where discrimnation against
the Russian mnorities was a daily occurrence. His delegation had constantly
to draw the international community's attention to the dangers of those
countries' policy of according priority to citizens of the titular nation, to
the detriment of the rights of its national mnorities. The situation of
Russians in Estonia and Latvia was a matter of particular concern. According
to the Council of Baltic Sea States conmi ssioner for denpcratic institutions
and human rights, the Estonian authorities were doing nothing to renove the
barriers to granting of citizenship by naturalization

9. According to the O ganization for Security and Cooperation in
Eur ope (OSCE) Hi gh Conmi ssioner on National Mnorities, in Latvia, too,
not all its recommendations regarding the situation of the Russian-speaking

popul ati on were being conplied with, particularly with regard to
simplification of the procedure for naturalization and granting of citizenship
to children born in the territory of the Republic of Latvia. Hi s delegation
hoped that the dial ogue between the Russian Federation and Latvia begun in



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 5

July 1997 on a whol e range of humanitarian problens, as well as action by the
Latvian State Bureau for Human Rights, would help inprove the situation with
regard to granting of citizenship.

10. The Russi an Federation was doing everything in its power to ensure that
its compatriots' problens were settled, and there had been sone inprovenents.
In 1997 there had al ready been two neetings of Russian and Estoni an experts on
humanitarian affairs. A Russian-Latvian intergovernnental comr ssion had been
set up, in which a working group on humanitarian questions was considering the
situation of mnorities. Dialogue between the States was being established,
but difficulties persisted. The situation of human rights in those countries
shoul d thus remain a focus of international attention

11. Ms. DAES said that the report of the Wirking Goup on Mnorities on its
third session (E/ CN. 4/ Sub.2/1997/18) reflected the systematic and i ntensive
wor k done by its five menmbers in the short space of five days. She

congratul ated the Chai rman- Rapporteur and the other menbers of the

Working Group on their contributions to its fruitful debates and the val uable
wor ki ng papers they had subnmtted. She also drew attention to the remarkable
wor ki ng paper submitted by M. Gudnundur Al fredsson, entitled Encouraging and
Monitoring Conpliance with Mnority Rights. She fully endorsed

M. Al fredsson's concl udi ng observations, to be found on pages 12 and 13 of
hi s wor ki ng paper.

12. She endorsed the statenent, to be found in paragraph 17 of the report,
that the Declaration on the Rights of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic,
Rel i gi ous and Linguistic Mnorities nust remain the focus of mnority rights
and that one of the roles of the Wirking G oup was to review and pronote the
practical realization of the Declaration. One of the best ways to achieve
that aim at global |level was through international cooperation. |In her view,
the Decl aration placed the rights of mnorities on the agenda for

i nternational financial aid and technical assistance, not only fromthe Centre
for Human Rights but fromall the systenls specialized agencies and
operational programres. Although the two International Covenants on Human
Rights referred to international cooperation, they did so in a perm ssive
rather than a directive context; whereas the Declaration stated plainly that
the United Nations system“shall” contribute to the full realization of the
rights and principles set forth in the Declaration, and that States “shoul d”
ensure the conpatibility of international cooperation projects with the
interests and rights of persons belonging to mnorities. Thus, in her

opi nion, the rights of persons belonging to mnorities were an objective and
gui deline applicable to the whole field of international cooperation

13. In that respect the Declaration took a progressive approach to the
realization of the rights of persons belonging to mnorities, enphasizing
devel opnent and international responsibility for securing that devel opnent.

To that extent it was consistent with the phil osophy of the Declaration on the
Ri ght to Devel opnent, being in fact the first human rights instrunent to apply
that philosophy to a specific field of action. Even in relatively wealthy
countries mnorities could be severely disadvantaged, and it was thus

i mperative to consider themas priorities for development if they were to



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 6

achi eve genuine equality. She recommended that the Working G oup should
consider further exploring the role and protection of mnorities in the
context of international cooperation

14. On the definition of mnorities, various coll eagues, notably M. Hatano
had pointed out that a universally acceptable definition was not attainable,
at least at the current stage. 1In the past, attenpts by M. Capotorti,

M. Dechénes and others had been rejected by the Sub-Conm ssion or the
Commission. In her view, the sane was true of the definition of the concept
“i ndi genous”. She had done a systematic study on the question, taking
account, inter alia, of the inportant work done by M. Chernichenko on the
definition of mnorities. Nevertheless, her conclusion was that both the
Wor ki ng Group on | ndi genous Popul ati ons and the Wbrking G oup on Mnorities
shoul d continue their constructive work w thout persisting in the vain quest
for a definition. The latter group m ght consider elaborating certain
criteria applicable in determ ning what categories of persons belonged to
mnorities.

15. She supported the concl usi ons and reconmendati ons contained in

par agraphs 105 to 125 of the report, and in particular recogni zed the

i mportance and useful ness of the manual referred to in its paragraph 108.
However, in view of the financial crisis in the United Nations and the |arge
nunber of mnority | anguages, she believed that it mght be nore realistic to
begin by preparing the nmanual in the six official |anguages of the

Or gani zati on.

16. M. EIDE, Chairnman-Rapporteur of the Wrking Goup on Mnorities,

t hanked all those nenbers who had contributed to the debate under agenda
item 8, including the many non-governnental organi zations (NGOs) that had
taken the floor. The information they had provided and the ideas and
suggestions they had proposed were greatly wel comed and woul d be taken into
account in the future work of the Working Group. In particular, he wished to
thank Mnority Rights Goup for its inportant support over the years, and
International Service for Human Ri ghts, which had offered assistance for the
organi zation of the seminar on nulticultural and inter-cultural education

17. He al so appreci ated the statenments made by governnment observers, both in
t he Sub- Commi ssion and in the Commi ssion at its nost recent session. He could
assure those observers that due account had been taken of the various views
expressed during the Comm ssion's deliberations on that item as required
under paragraph 12 of its resolution 1997/16. The Wrking Group's main source
of gui dance woul d be the expectation expressed in that resolution, that it
woul d further inplenment its mandate as set out in Comr ssion

resol ution 1995/24, with the invol venent of a wi de range of participants.

18. He had noted strong support fromall speakers in the Sub-Comr ssion -
and also in the Comrission at its npst recent session - for the continuation
of the Wbrking Goup. Many had pointed out that the topic was possibly the
nmost inportant one with which the Sub-Comr ssion dealt, and that the
activities of the Wirking G oup proved the inportance of the Sub-Conm ssion as
a whole. There had al so been generally strong support for the approach taken
thus far, and unani nous support for npbst of the recomrendati ons contained in
the report.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 7

19. M. Khalifa had raised a fundanental point, corresponding to a |large
extent to what in his own first intervention he had referred to as inflated
clainms of self-determ nation, whereby groups challenged the territoria
integrity of States and sonetinmes took up arns for that purpose. That,
however, occurred when the groups concerned refused to consider thenselves as
mnorities but clainmed instead to be “nations” or “peoples”. The Wrking
Group consistently stressed that it took as its basis the Declaration of 1992
which in its preanble stated that the pronmption and protection of the rights
of persons belonging to mnorities contributed to the political and socia
stability of States in which they lived, and in its article 8, paragraph 4,
stated that nothing in the Declaration mght be construed as permtting any
activity contrary to the purposes and principles of the United Nations,

i ncluding sovereign equality, territorial integrity and political independence
of States. He very nuch agreed with M. Khalifa on the need to avoid m suse
and mani pul ation. The risk was nuch greater, however, when the |eaders of a
group clainmed that it was not a minority but a people and therefore entitled
to the right to self-determ nation. That was one of the reasons why he was
reluctant to accept a definition of mnorities that excluded such groups.

20. M. Yimer, while generally expressing strong support for the

Wor ki ng Group and endorsing nmany of its recommendati ons, had raised sonme
fundanmental questions relating to the understandi ng of the mandate.

M. Fan Guoxi ang had rai sed sonme of the sane concerns.

21. The first issue raised by M. Yinmer had referred to the suggestion

made in paragraph 114 that w der use could be nade of bilateral treaties.

The question of whether that fell within the mandate depended on the
interpretation placed on article 6 of the Declaration, which called on States

to cooperate on questions relating to mnorities. It was his understanding
that that article referred in particular to neighbouring States in which
menbers of the sane ethnic group lived on both sides of the frontier. 1In his

view, one way in which such cooperation could be arranged was through the use
of bilateral treaties. They were not always suitable, and could cause

probl ems when a powerful State inposed a bilateral arrangement on a weak

nei ghbour; but the experience of such treaties should be studied, and use made
of them when appropriate. It was essential, however, as was stated in
paragraph 114, that the treaties should reflect universal and regional human
rights instrunents and that equitable provisions for the settl enent of

di sputes should be contained in them

22. The second set of questions relating to the mandate was the listing of
themes for further work in paragraph 124. M. Yiner had wondered whet her the
theme of the relationship between the protection of the rights of mnorities
and popul ation di spl acenent, mgration and refugee flows was beyond the
mandat e of the Wbrking Group. |In that connection he drew attention to

Sub- Commi ssi on resol ution 1995/13, which in its paragraph 6 requested the
Working Goup to exanmine, inter alia, as part of its nmandate concerning the
exam nation of possible solutions to problenms involving mnorities, issues
relating to forcible displacenents of popul ations, including threats of
removal , and the return of persons who had been displaced. He assured nenbers
that the Working Group was not going to deal with the issues of mgration
popul ation transfers and refugee flows generally - which would go far beyond



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 8

the mandate - but only with those aspects of the question which were either
directly caused by lack of mnority protection or which gave rise to new
mnority problens.

23. On the question of whether the recommendations relating to conflict
prevention and resolution and the diffusion of tensions were beyond the
mandat e of the Working G oup, he drew attention to paragraph 25 of the

Decl arati on and Programme of Action of the W rld Conference on Human Ri ghts,
which called on the Centre for Hunan Rights to provide, as part of its
programe of advisory services and technical assistance, qualified expertise
on mnority issues and human rights, as well as on the prevention and
resolution of disputes, to assist in existing or potential situations
involving mnorities. Mreover, the General Assenbly, in its

resolution 48/141 establishing the post of Hi gh Conm ssioner for Human Ri ghts,
had stated that he or she should provide through the Centre advi sory services
and techni cal assistance and shoul d engage in dialogue with Governments. He
concl uded, therefore, that it would be within the mandate of the High

Commi ssioner to devel op and i nplenment procedures for conflict prevention if
they were strictly based on human rights, including the rights of persons

bel onging to mnorities.

24. As for whether it was within the nandate of the Wbrking Goup to be a
forum for constructive dial ogue by “finding nmethods of diffusing tensions and
preventing conflict”, he agreed with M. Yimer and M. Fan that it would be
wi se not to be overambitious in that regard. The phrase was intended to
reflect the part of the mandate under which the Wbrking G oup woul d pronote
mut ual under st andi ng between and anong minorities and Governments. He agreed
with M. Fan that the Wrking Goup should be both active and prudent inits
further work.

25. M. Quissé had rightly pointed out that the issue of citizenship was

i nportant to everyone, not only nenbers of minorities. The Wrking Goup had
addressed that issue because disenfranchi senment or denial of citizenship
sonetimes had as its main purpose or effect the exclusion, in particular, of
menbers of an ethnic group fromenjoying full rights in the society concerned.
However, the Wbrking Goup's interpretation was that citizenship was not a
requi renment for enjoying the rights contained in the Declaration on the Rights
of Persons Belonging to National or Ethnic, Religious and Linguistic
Mnorities. As regards the suggestion in paragraph 18 of the report that
citizenship should be extended liberally to all who made a State their

per manent home, it was generally true, as M. Bossuyt had pointed out, that
citizenship was a fortiori for Governments to bestow. However, that principle
had been somewhat nodified by international human rights |aw, since in cases
of State succession, in particular, the issue of citizenship was not purely an
internal matter. There was undoubtedly a need for the Wirking G oup to study
the issue in greater depth.

26. He agreed with M. Cuissé that, |ike everyone el se, nenbers of
mnorities had duties as well as rights, including the duty to respect the
rights of all other nenbers of society and to respect the |laws of the country
in which they lived.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 9

27. On the question of the definition of mnorities, he had no problens with
paragraph 1 of M. Chernichenko's definition (E/ CN 4/ Sub. 2/ AC.5/1997/WpP. 1),

whi ch was open enough to cover all necessary situations. He believed that
every ethnic, religious or linguistic group which forned | ess than half of the
popul ation was in a mnority situation, but only had mnority problenms when
the majority sought to block it frompractising its culture, using its

| anguage or professing its religious faith. He did have a problemw th the
exceptions in article 6 of the annex; he noted, however, that the definition
was only proposed as a guideline and did not foresee that those differences
woul d have any practical consequences for the future work of the Working

G oup.

28. Wth regard to the question raised by M. Hatano on the preparation of
manual s in mnority |anguages when no definition of mnorities existed, he
said it was usually self-evident which | anguages in a country were mnority
| anguages, and it would be inpractical anyway, at least initially, to cover
every single mnority | anguage.

29. Wth regard to the suggestion by Ms. MDougall and some NGOs that the
Wor ki ng Group should consider the situations of the Afro-Anerican mnorities
in various parts of the Anericas, he said those groups had al ready nmade
contributions to the work of the Working G oup and assuned that their
situations would be given even nore space in future sessions.

Statenents equivalent to the exercise of the right of reply

30. M. NAZARI AN (Qbserver for Arnenia) said that for historical reasons an
overwhel ming mgjority of Armenians |lived outside Arnenia, exchanging their

cul tural background for security in their host State, while retaining their
identity.

31. He called the attention of the Observer for Azerbaijan and nmenbers of
t he Sub-Commi ssion to the horrible fate suffered recently by Armenians |iving
in the Azeri cities: follow ng pogrons and mass killings initiated by the

maj ority Power, 332,000 Arnenians had been forced to flee. Those barbaric
acts, carried out with conplete inpunity, were in response to the

legitimate call of the popul ation of Nagorny Karabakh for the right to

sel f-determ nation. The situation in Nagorny Karabakh was not a mnority

i ssue, since Arnenians were in the mgjority in their ancestral | ands.

The |iberation nmovenent representing the 250,000 Arnenians living in

Nagor ny Karabakh was no different from many other |iberation movenents which
had successfully created so many of the States Menbers of the United Nations.
Their struggle was rooted in a natural aspiration to live in peace and
security.

32. M. MOUSSAEV (Observer for Azerbaijan) said that Azerbaijan, unlike
Arnmenia, was a nulti-ethnic and nmulti-religious State where nore than

80 ethnic and linguistic groups with several religions had |ived together in a
spirit of tolerance and harnony for centuries. The equality of all citizens,
irrespective of their origin, religion or |anguage, was guaranteed by the |aw.
The people's will was expressed through participation in the process of
representative denocracy.




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 10

33. Before the arned conflict with Arnmenia, the Arnmenian conmmunity in

Azer baijan had enjoyed political, econom c and cultural autononmy within
Azerbaijan. In contrast, of the 600,000 Azerbaijanis living in 1918 in what
was now Arnenia and formng a third of the popul ation of that area, not one
remai ned there, as a result of a deliberate policy on the part of the Armenian
Governnment. The forcible expul sion of the |ast 200,000 Azerbaijanis from
their historical honelands in 1988, carried out on the instructions of the
Armeni an authorities, had been acconpani ed by the killing and mai m ng of
hundreds of Azerbaijanis. As a result of that “ethnic cleansing”, Armenia had
beconme a nono-ethnic State, with virtually no ethnic or religious mnorities
living there. That was why it was so easy for Arnmenia to advocate the
realization of the right to self-determination without limts.

34. M. NAZARI AN (Observer for Arnmenia) said the statenent by the
representative of Azerbaijan could only be seen as a crude and gross violation
of the nornms and principles of international |law. Azerbaijan continued to
pronote an aggressive nationalismand ethnic hatred directed at the popul ation
of Nagorny Karabakh. Wile claimng it could guarantee peace and security in
that area, Azerbaijan spread distrust by levelling fal se accusati ons at
Armeni a and denying its own responsibilities in Nagorny Karabakh. Pogrons had
been carried out in dozens of Arnenian villages and communities in

Nagor ny Karabakh in 1988. Many cases of atrocities, such as burning people
alive, had been docunented. Such cases were not only violations of human
rights, but also revealed that Azerbaijan had a deliberate policy not to
guarantee the security, rights and freedons of nations under its jurisdiction
and that it could give no such guarantee to the people of Nagorny Karabakh

He reiterated the warning given by the President of Arnenia at the Lisbon
Sunmit that the inposition of Azerbaijani rule in Nagorny Karabakh woul d | eave
the people there facing the threat of genocide.

35. M. MOUSSAEV (Observer for Azerbaijan) said that the groundl ess

al l egati ons made by the representative of Armenia showed that Arnmenia had no
intention of solving the conflict or giving up its territorial clains to
Azer baijan. The position of the Arnenian Governnent in connection with the
resol ution of the armed conflict was contrary to the position of the

i nternational comunity, as reflected in the decisions of the United Nations
Security Council and General Assenbly, the Organization for Security and
Cooperation in Europe, the Council of Europe and other internationa

organi zations. How could Arnenia settle the conflict if it rejected the
generally accepted norns of international |aw and the position of the

i nternational comunity?

36. He called on the Governnent of Arnenia, through the Chairman, to foll ow
the civilized approach towards peaceful settlenment of the conflict and the
building of inter-State relations on the basis of respect for the territoria
integrity and inviolability of the internationally recognized borders of

St at es.

37. The CHAIRMAN said that the Sub-Comr ssion had concluded its
consi deration of agenda item 8.




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 11

FREEDOM OF MOVEMENT:

(a) THE RI GHT TO LEAVE ANY COUNTRY, | NCLUDI NG ONE'S OAN, AND TO RETURN
TO ONE' S OAN COUNTRY, AND THE RI GHT TO SEEK ASYLUM FROM
PERSECUTI ON

(b) HUVMAN RI GHTS AND POPULATI ON DI SPLACEMENTS
(agenda item 10) (E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/1997/22 and 23)

38. M. AL- KHASAWNEH, Special Rapporteur on the hunman rights dinmensions
of popul ation transfer, introducing his third and final report

(E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ 23), said that he wi shed to place on record his

i ndebt edness to Dr. C. Beyani who had undertaken nost of the research and
the preparation of the initial drafts.

39. Before turning to the report itself, he wished to nake a nunber of
general remarks. In the first place, the topic of forcible population
transfer covered an exceptionally w de range of acts and activities, State and
non- State actors and situations. The situations ranged from acts of genocide,
such as ethnic cleansing, to acts notivated by a wish for social and econom c
devel opnent within a State, such as the building of a large dam Clearly the
rul es governi ng such acts could not be the sane; in the first exanple, clear
prohi bitions and possibly the crimnal responsibility of a State or |eader
wer e engaged, whereas in the second the question was one of weighing
conflicting rights and ensuring that no innocent victins were |left to bear
their | osses al one.

40. Secondly, in approaching the subject of population transfer, one should
be acutely aware that public international |aw already included rules

prohi biting or regulating various aspects of forcible population transfer
such as article 49 of the Geneva Convention relative to the Protection of
Civilian Persons in Tine of War, various articles of the Internationa
Covenants on Human Rights or a nunber of declarations form ng part of what was
known as “soft law’. In deciding on the ultimate formthat the current
exerci se should take, the Sub-Conmi ssion should bear in mnd that not al
those rules carried the sane weight, not only because of the classic

di stinction between hard and soft |aw, but also because some were part of
customary |law while others were contractual in nature.

41. Thirdly, population transfers infringed on many human rights, such as
the right to housing or social security, but no enuneration of those rights
could capture the sense of loss that arose fromexile, let alone qualify or
remedy it for that |oss pertained to the very essence of the human being. It
was no wonder that the great exiles of the past had left an indelible mark on
the collective personality of peoples and led to endless conflicts. The depth
of feeling and sense of | oss one encountered in speaking to exiles, whether
Pal esti nians or Bosnians, was difficult to translate into a |egal instrunent.
Thus, the belief that ethnic cleansing or the creation of a refugee problem
sol ved any problem was a grossly m staken one, quite apart fromits innate

| egal and noral reprehensibility.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 12

42. Fourthly, international |aw provided sinple recipes to deal with the
conplexities that ensued from population transfers. Restitutio in integrum
consisting of the right to return and conpensation for damage inflicted,
shoul d, in his opinion, continue to be insisted upon. 1In practice, however,
reversing a situation that had beconme entrenched was exceedingly difficult, if
not well-nigh inpossible, and not al ways desirable or just when people, as
opposed to chattel, were involved. For exanple, to demand conpensation for

t he many people exiled under the apartheid regime in South Africa would pl ace
a burden on the citizens of a now denobcratic South Africa. Another problem
was that the passage of time created a relationship between the exiled

popul ation and the receiving State and its popul ation; exiles set down new
roots. It therefore seenmed to himthat the concept of the right of return was
not always a magi c sol ution

43. Fifthly, there was al so an inherent antagoni sm between peace and
justice. Peace was an act of accommpdation and of conpromise. |In the

i nterests of peace, essentially unprincipled solutions to conflicts were
reached. Justice, on the other hand, consisted of the reversal of situations,
the wi pi ng out of original wongs, but that usually meant a continuation of
conflict and perhaps even nore injustice. As conflicts came to an end, the
tensi on between justice and peace becane sharply focused. For exanple, in the
peace treaty between Jordan and Israel it was stated that the refugee problem
woul d be solved on the basis of international |aw once the final status

negoti ations with the Pal estinians began. It remained to be seen whether the
del i cate bal ance between peace and justice could be struck in solving that
nmost thorny of problens. Mre forceful provisions in the Dayton Agreenents
had led to | ack of inplenmentation. The choice facing humanity was never easy:
it appeared to be between either some creative anbiguity or forthright

non- conpl i ance.

44. Sixthly, the issue of the element of force essential for covering the
topic was far fromclear. On the one hand, there were the hard-core areas
such as the case of populations being driven fromtheir homes through the use
or threat of violence. On the other hand, there were nore evasive situations,
such as during a prolonged mlitary occupation, which had the net effect of
driving people fromtheir hones. Still nore pervasive were policies of the
mani pul ati on of international econonmic forces to weak havoc w thin whole
soci eties under the concept of collective nmeasures that had led mllions to

| eave their countries of origin. The causal link was not always easy to
ascertain and coul d sonetines be conceal ed, but the result was always the
same. He had no doubt that after allowance had been nmade for the requirenent
of causation, such situations should certainly be included in any definition
of forcible population transfers.

45. Lastly, on the question of the inadequacy of national |egal remedies to
prevent forcible population transfer, he referred to the dissenting opinion of
Justice Murphy of the United States Suprene Court in the case of Japanese
Americans, cited in paragraph 39 of his report. The only other case he had
been able to find was from seventeenth-century Yenmen, when the ruling | nmam had
wanted to exile the Jews of Yenen to India but was persuaded not to by jurists
who argued that the infliction of a collective punishnent was inconpatible
with Islamc |aw.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 13

46. Turning to the report itself, he suggested that it should be read
together with the prelimnary (E/ CN 4/Sub.?2/1993/17 and Corr.1) and

progress (E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1994 and Corr.1) reports. He had endeavoured to
reflect the findings of the nultidisciplinary expert sem nar, but not always
successfully, for few firminferences could be drawn from conflicting opinions
in one discipline, let alone in different disciplines. Those opinions were
reflected in paragraphs 10 to 18 of the report. |In chapters Ill and IV, the
phenonenon of territorial changes and State succession in relation to
popul ati on transfers was considered. The concept of a genuine and effective
i nk was expl ai ned and cogni zance was taken of the work of the Internationa
Law Conmmi ssion on the effect of State succession. Chapter V anplified the
contents of previous reports on the nmuch-abused concept of military necessity,
especially in the case of prolonged nmilitary occupation. Chapter VI discussed
the inmpact of population transfer on econom c, social and cultural rights.

For ease of reference, annex | enunerated all human rights nornms affected by
popul ation transfer. On the question of renedies, discussed in chapter VII,
he said there was a need to be on guard agai nst those who noted that
arrangenents for pecuniary conpensation were difficult to inplenent. The
function of law in society was to act as a bal ance agai nst power, not as a
recogni ti on of power

47. He had an open mind on the course of action the Sub-Comm ssion should
take, and had presented a range of possibilities in his recomrendations,

i ncluding the preparation of an international instrunent; a draft declaration
el aborated by the experts at the sem nar, was appended in annex |Il. The

el aboration of an additional protocol to the International Covenants on Human
Ri ghts was another possibility, although it mght not attract w de adherence
and m ght thus weaken already existing norms. The possibility of establishing
a nonitoring process and an international fund for the victins of popul ation
transfer were al so suggested.

48. He was aware of extrenely inportant work done by the United Nations High
Commi ssioner for Refugees in the field of population transfer, and noted that
popul ation transfer m ght occur at an accelerated rate in a world of
post-nodern tribalism He hoped that a nechani sm could be found to combi ne
the work of the various bodies working on the topic.

49. In conclusion, the topic of forcible population transfer was a very

i nportant one because it touched on the fundanmental questions of peace and
justice and was also situated at the intersection of law and politics. It

affected the lives of millions, and touched on everyone's sensibilities and
deeply hel d convictions.

50. Ms. DAES asked whet her the Special Rapporteur had any special request
to the Sub-Conmi ssion for action on his final report.

51. M. AL- KHASAWNEH, Special Rapporteur on the human rights dinmensions
of popul ation transfer, said that the Sub-Comm ssion m ght consider the
possibility of publishing the report if it felt his study was of sufficient
wort h.




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 14

THE REALI ZATI ON OF ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS:

(a) THE | NTERNATI ONAL ECONOM C ORDER AND THE PROMOTI ON OF HUMAN
RI GHTS;

(b) THE REALI ZATI ON OF THE RI GHT TO DEVELOPMENT;
(c) THE QUESTI ON OF TRANSNATI ONAL CORPCRATI ONS;

(d) THE REALI ZATI ON OF THE RI GHT TO EDUCATI ON, | NCLUDI NG EDUCATI ON I N
HUMAN RI GHTS

(agenda item 4) (continued) (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1997/9)

52. The CHAIRMAN said that the officers of the Sub-Conm ssion had proposed
that the discussion of the final report on the relationship between the

enj oyment of human rights, in particular economc, social and cultural rights,
and inconme distribution (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1997/9) should be deferred because,
owing to its late distribution in the various official |anguages, there had
been insufficient time to consider and analyse it in depth. In addition, he
had been asked, as Special Rapporteur, to prepare a summary of the three
previous reports. He requested nenbers of the Sub-Comm ssion and NGOs who had
al ready prepared statenents on the report to transmt themto himfor

i ncorporation in his submi ssion to the next session

53. If he heard no objection, he would take it that the Sub-Conm ssion
agreed to defer discussion of the relationship between human rights and i ncone
distribution until the next session

54, It was so deci ded.

THE ADM NI STRATI ON CF JUSTI CE AND HUMAN RI GHTS:
(a) QUESTI ON OF HUVAN RI GHTS AND STATES OF EMERGENCY;

(b) APPLI CATI ON OF | NTERNATI ONAL STANDARDS CONCERNI NG THE HUMAN RI GHTS
OF DETAI NED JUVENI LES AND THE JUDI Cl AL PROTECTI ON OF CHI LDREN;

(c) GROSS AND MASSI VE VI OLATI ONS OF HUMAN RI GHTS AS AN | NTERNATI ONAL
CRI ME;

(d)  JUVENI LE JUSTI CE

(agenda item9) (E/ CN. 4/Sub.?2/1997/19 and Add. 1, 20, 29 and 32;
E/ CN. 4/ 1998/ 5- E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ 39; E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ NGO 7, 8, 20 and 27)

55. M. DESPOUY, Special Rapporteur on human rights and states of energency,
i ntroducing his tenth annual report and list of States which, since

1 January 1985, had procl ai ned, extended or term nated a state of energency
(E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ 19 and Add. 1) said that, in his view, tremendous progress
had been made in recent years, particularly since the late 1970s, in the
regul ati on of states of energency in terns of both standard-setting and

i nternational supervision. Until sone 20 years previously, there had been a



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 15

great deal of confusion regarding the rules that were applicable in situations
of crisis. Wth the entry into force of the two International Covenants on
Human Ri ghts and other regional human rights instrunments, the right of

i ndividuals to take action at the international |evel had finally been

recogni zed. It had not previously been possible to nmention individua
countries that were violating human rights in a public forum Any discussions
of such matters had taken place in canmera. The first study of states of
energency subnmtted by the Sub-Commission's expert, Ms. Questiaux, in 1982
(E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1982/ 15) had been of great significance. While Governnents had
finally conceded that international supervision of human rights in norma

ci rcunst ances was not necessarily a formof interference in their interna
affairs, they considered that States nust be free to handl e enmergencies as
they saw fit. Sone Latin Anerican States clained that they were faced with
situations of undeclared war and therefore had no option but to suspend human
rights. At the sanme tine, they clained that the rules of internationa
humanitarian |aw did not apply in the absence of a war between nations.
Fortunately, the world had changed radically in the neantime. States of
energency were subject to clear-cut rules and international supervision by
human rights treaty nonitoring bodies and the Special Rapporteur

56. In addition to reviewing the principles governing states of emergency
such as proportionality and the existence of an exceptional threat, the report
endeavoured to provide an overview of devel opments in international law in
general, particularly with respect to the inviolability of certain principles.
The entry into force of such instrunents as the Convention against Torture and
O her Cruel, Inhuman or Degradi ng Treatnment or Puni shnent expressly prohibited
any derogation fromthe right to security of person. Many val uable precedents
had al so been established by, for exanple, the convention nonitoring bodies of
the International Labour Organization (I1LO) and the case |aw of the
International Court of Justice. The list of non-derogable rights had been
greatly extended.

57. The report went on to consider irregularities in the application of
states of emergency, for exanple de facto states of emergency and the

i ncreasi ng sophistication and institutionalization of states of energency.

In recent years, there had been a nunber of cases of breakdown of the
institutional order, for exanple in certain African countries and in the
former Yugoslavia. |In the conflicts associated with those crises, the
civilian popul ati on had been conpletely deprived of State protection. It was
essential to exam ne the causes of such conflicts and the way in which they
devel oped. They seened to be generated by a conbinati on of el enents involving
not just the collapse of legal structures but also a weakening of the
restraints associated with the existence of the State and many other socia
and econom c factors.

58. Lastly, the report considered the inpact of states of energency on
institutions, the rule of |aw and human rights. Wen non-derogable rights
wer e suspended, states of energency were liable to degenerate, leading in
extreme situations to genocide and ethnic cl eansing.

59. He considered that the Conmi ssion on Human Ri ghts should pay nore
attention to the adverse inpact of states of emergency on the enjoynment of
human rights and had reiterated his reconendation that it should appoint a



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 16

speci al rapporteur or set up a working group to carry out that task. The
Centre for Human Rights and the Hi gh Comm ssioner for Human Rights could al so
make an inportant contribution through preventive di plomacy and establ i shnent
of a linkage between human rights and states of energency.

60. The annual list of States which had proclained, extended or term nated a
state of energency was contained in document E/ CN. 4/ Sub.?2/1997/19/ Add. 1.

61. M. FIX ZAMJDI O said that it had been very difficult to regul ate

decl arations of states of emergency because it had been accepted for nmany
years that they were entirely at the discretion of Governments and a
mani f estati on of the sovereignty of States. |In alnpst all cases, they had
been used as a formof “constitutional dictatorship”. As noted by the Specia
Rapporteur (E/ CN. 4/Sub.2/1997/19), thanks to the gradual devel opment of
international |aw and human rights, states of emergency were no | onger an
exclusively internal affair but were subject to generally accepted

i nternational supervision. A further paradox, however, was the existence of
what anpunted to “permanent states of enmergency”. He referred in particular
to a Latin Anerican State where a state of emergency had been in pl ace

for 30 years.

62. States of energency could be used for two different purposes. Wile
they were frequently enployed to bol ster authoritarian regimes, they should
really serve the opposite purpose of defending constitutional structures from
hazards associated with conflicts or other simlar events and protecting

i ndi vi dual human rights fromthe consequences of political, social and
econom ¢ crises and natural disasters.

63. The Speci al Rapporteur had specified the principles that shoul d govern
states of emergency, which nust be placed firmly within the field of lawto
di spel any mi staken interpretations linking themw th discretionary power to
exercise authority during crises. Those principles were: legality;

procl amation; notification; tinme limtation; exceptional threat;
proportionality; non-discrimnation; and conpatibility, concordance and
conplenmentarity of the various norns of international law. In the |ight of
those principles, the Special Rapporteur had described the norns that should
serve as nodels for national legislation to bring it intoline with the
provi si ons, principles and values of international law relating to human
rights and humanitarian law. That section of the report was of great

i nportance inasnuch as States parties to international treaties had undertaken
to reformtheir internal |legal systems in such a way as to enforce the

provi sions of the treaties concerned.

64. The Speci al Rapporteur's coments on the inpact of states of

energency on institutions and the rule of |aw were al so of signal inportance,
particularly those regarding the judiciary. The authority of judges tended to
be severely curtailed by states of energency when their inplications were

i ncompatible with the constitution, |egislation and obligations under
international law. Fortunately, it had recently beconme acceptable for judges
to anal yse such conpatibility, particularly by application of the concept of
reasonabl eness. I n that connection, it was inportant to stress the fact that
habeas corpus and anparo were non-derogable rights.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 17

65. He appreciated the Special Rapporteur's observations concerning the
extensive use of states of energency, especially in Latin Anerica and even
under constitutional regines, to subject civilians to mlitary jurisdiction, a
serious violation of the inportant fundamental right to be tried by a civilian
court.

66. He al so supported the Special Rapporteur's recomendations, particularly
t he recommendation to the United Nations Human Rights Committee concerning the
non-derogability of the right of habeas corpus, which coincided with a request
directed by M. Weissbrodt through the Sub-Comr ssion to the sanme body
concerning the desirability of a new general comrent to establish the
non-derogability of the rights of habeas corpus and anparo during states

of emergency.

67. Ms. Warzazi took the Chair.

68. M. ALl KHAN said that the report on human rights and states of
energency (E/ CN. 4/ Sub.2/1997/19) dealt with a question of universa

signi ficance, that of fundanental freedoms. Section 3 on non-derogability of
t he exercise of fundanental human rights was of particular inmportance. It
noted that the International Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, the

Eur opean Convention on Human Ri ghts and the Anmerican Convention on Human

Ri ghts specified clearly that certain fundamental human rights were not
negoti abl e under any circunstances. The idea of fundamental freedons was

al so contained in Article 3.1 of the Charter of the United Nations.

69. The Speci al Rapporteur had also referred to the question of reservations
to treaties. He felt that even nore could have been said on the subject in
the context of non-derogability. Reservations, which were in sone cases
contrary to the very spirit of the nultilateral instrument concerned, had
become a very comon practice. In that connection, he recalled a reservation
entered by the United States of Anerica to Article 36 of the Statute of the
International Court of Justice to the effect that it would submt to the
Court's jurisdiction in respect of all matters except those which fell within
the donestic jurisdiction of the United States as determ ned by the

United States.

70. Secondl y, habeas corpus was a fundanental principle, but on occasion it
was subject to technical difficulties: sonetinmes, for exanple, the person
bei ng sought could not - or reportedly could not - be found. He therefore
conmended to those of a |legal cast of mind the desirability of discussing the
concept and scope of mandanus, another prerogative wit primarily concerned
with the enforcement of duties, even in states of emergency.

71. Anot her admirabl e aspect of the report was the chapter on the inpact of
states of emergency on institutions and on the rule of law, with particular
reference to states of enmergency that were not notified and those that were
perpetuated. He took it that in stressing the responsibility of internationa
organi zations the Special Rapporteur, quite rightly, considered that such
situations should be nonitored, since they were crucial to the maintenance of
the rule of law. His discussion of arbitrary detention in states of



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 18

energency, and the independence of the judiciary - which was the main hope of
those deprived of liberty and freedom of speech - was the cornerstone of the
report.

72. The recomrendations to States (para. 184) were unexceptionable, but the

first risked being no nore than a pious wish; it was hard to see how the rigid
concept of the sovereignty of States could be overcome. It was a matter that

the next report of the Special Rapporteur could consider. O greater

i mportance were the recommendations to the Human Rights Conmittee (para. 187),
since without the reconmended nonitoring nechanismthe recommendations to the

Conmi ssion and t he Sub- Conm ssion would be of no use.

73. The report as a whole represented a great step forward on an issue of
supreme inmportance in all parts of the world.

74. M. WEI SSBRODT wel comed the remarks of M. Fix Zanudi o, whose court had
pl ayed an inportant role in dealing with the issues involved in states of
energency, and those of M. Ali Khan. He too was concerned about reservations
that m ght underm ne the object and purpose of a treaty. As for habeas
corpus, it was a matter that had been fruitfully discussed in the working
group on the adm nistration of justice and the question of conpensation

where it had been decided that habeas corpus should be non-derogable.

75. The Speci al Rapporteur had since 1987 served the Sub-Comm ssion in
gathering data froma wi de range of sources to highlight the conditions in
countries that had procl ai nred, extended or term nated states of energency. He
had i ncreased the Sub-Commi ssion's understandi ng of the various circunstances
surroundi ng emergency situations, enabling it to exam ne State practices under
such circunstances in greater detail. Under article 4 of the Internationa
Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, a State party that had officially
procl ainmed a state of energency that threatened the Iife of the nation could
derogate fromits obligations on a limted nunmber of rights to the extent
strictly required by the situation. States parties were required to notify
the Secretary-General pronptly regarding the nature of the energency situation
and the specific rights that would be limted. The exigencies of a public
energency, however, could never warrant derogation fromcertain fundanenta
human rights. The Special Rapporteur had perforned a great service in
identifying States that had not notified the Secretary-General in such
circunstances, and also in identifying rights that should be non-derogabl e.

He had made it clear that the rights protected from derogati on under the
Covenant were not limted to those enunerated under article 4, notably the
right to habeas corpus and the rel ated aspects of anparo, which were cruci al
to the preservation of other non-derogable rights and particularly necessary
renedi es for wongful arrest and detention. Such non-derogability should be
reaffirmed as essential to the protection of the non-derogable rights
identified in article 4 and, indeed, to the proper admnistration of justice.

76. He suggested one alteration that m ght be considered for future reports.
The list of countries that had procl ai med, extended or term nated a state of
emergency included 87 States and territories; but a state of energency was
still in force in only 30 of those countries. Perhaps an annual list could be
conpiled reflecting only those countries in which a de facto or de jure state
of energency was still in force. Attention need not be drawn to those



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 19

countries, such as South Africa, whose state of energency was fully and
adequately termnated; it would be sufficient to publish a |ist of such
countries only every 5 to 10 years.

77. M. GUI SSE said that the report (E/ CN.4/Sub.2/1997/19) had enunciated a
nunber of inportant principles. Mst human rights were suspended in a state
of energency, which was declared by a decision of the State. |If the state of
energency was not justified, the decision was a violation of all rights. For
hi m the main question was how - and how far - victins could receive reparation
or conpensation. O all rights at risk in a state of energency, |iberty was
the nost vul nerable, which neant that habeas corpus and anmparo were
particularly inmportant. The essence of habeas corpus was the appeal to an
authority on the justification of a detention and was not easily achieved
during states of energency. He therefore considered that if a state of
energency was unavoi dabl e the State concerned shoul d make habeas cor pus
non- der ogabl e, thus providing sone guarantee of freedom for the individual to
come and go as he pleased. Since habeas corpus was not known under all |ega
systems, he suggested that future reports could set out a |list of rules under
t he general headi ng of habeas corpus; it would be of assistance to States and
i ndi vi dual s and woul d hel p spread the concept of habeas corpus throughout the
wor | d.

78. M. ZHONG Shukong noted that paragraph 38 of the report
(E/CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ 19) di stingui shed between three types of situation

All three, however, concerned arnmed conflict in varying degrees, so he
wondered whether, as a finishing touch to his report, the Special Rapporteur
m ght consi der addi ng a paragraph 38 bis, which could read as foll ows:

A “tense situation” is caused by a disturbance or by serious
activities aimed at subverting the legitimte Governnent or splitting
the country. In such a situation, nmartial law, or a state of emergency,
may be procl ainmed for the defence of the Constitution or the defence of
t he fundanental institutions of the State, which bear responsibility for
ensuring the freedomand security of all citizens of the country.

79. The CHAI RMAN asked whet her he was proposing an anmendnment or nerely
maki ng a recommendati on of which the Special Rapporteur should take note.

80. M . ZHONG Shukong said that it was in her hands. His hope was, however
that the paragraph would be incorporated, as an appendix, in a note or in any
ot her form

81. Ms. ZAMPARUTTI (Transnational Radical Party - TRP) said that the

i nternational comunity should devote particular attention to situations in
whi ch the death penalty was applied in the absence of m ninum | egal standards
and procedural rights. That was often the case in states of energency. The
“Hands O f Cain” canpaign of the Transnational Radical Party intended to cal
attention to another phenonenon: the application of the death penalty to

m nors, which was pernmitted in some 20 States. The number of ratifications to
treaties forbidding such actions, however, inplied that an international norm
exi sted disallowing such a practice. Reservations on such matters, especially
that proposed by the United States of Anerica to the International Covenant on
Cvil and Political Rights, should be considered inadm ssible.




E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 20

82. TRP and its partner organization Human Rights in China (HRIC) al so noted
the lack of respect for the human rights of detainees in China, due notably to
the |l ack of independence of the judiciary, the discrepancy between the | ega
apparatus and the enforcenment thereof, the non-observance of the right of
appeal and the common use of re-education through | abour, an admi nistrative
sentence i nposed by the police without judicial proceedings. Torture and

m streatnment were routine in Chinese detention centres and prison regul ations
on visiting rights, for exanple, were often breached

83. Wei Jingsheng, China's nobst proninent dissident, had been repeatedly
beaten by his fellow inmates, six comon crimnals who kept watch over him

24 hours a day. The prisoner who had beaten himthe nost had been publicly
conmmended and given a reduction in his sentence, whereas Wi Jingsheng had
been accused of violating prison regulations. His health had deteriorated
further - he suffered froma heart condition, high blood pressure and
arthritis, and could no |longer hold his head erect because of danmage to his
neck - but prison officials had denied his request for appropriate nedica
care, although the denial of such care was considered a formof torture by the
Speci al Rapporteur on the question of torture. Wi Jingsheng was but one of
many; others continued to be subject to re-education through |abour, a form of
detention judged inherently arbitrary by the Wirking G oup on Arbitrary
Detention. In that connection, TRP and HRIC regretted that, owing to its

i npending visit to China, the Wirking G oup had decided to suspend the

exam nation of communi cati ons regardi ng Chi nese detai nees. She urged the

Chi nese Governnent to change its policy on the issues that she had nentioned.

84. M. GARCIA (Pax Romana) said that nost African countries were suffering
an effective dismantling of public powers. Sonetinmes that led to triba
rivalries, as in Burundi, where arbitrary detentions had been carried out in
June by nenbers of the |aw enforcement services in Ngozi and Kayanza, in order
to obtain bribes fromdetainees on an ethnic basis. The ruling Tutsis had
started to establish paranmilitary forces to attack the Hutu population in

Tut si -domi nated areas. The Governnent had executed six arbitrarily detained
people on 31 July - three Hutu, two Tutsi and one Pygm - to denonstrate its
inmpartiality; but such brutal crimnal action would not inprove its

i nternational reputation

85. Kenya was an exanple of a dictatorship attenpting to preserve power.
In Decenber 1996 the police had shot dead two students denonstrating on the
canmpus of Kenyatta University. A student |eader, Salonmon Miruli, had been

ki dnapped by policenmen, detained for a week, beaten up and left for dead.
After receiving a death threat if he dared identify the police officers who
had ki dnapped him he was killed when a bonb exploded in his room On 5 and
7 July 1997 many students and others had been killed during denpnstrations on
reform ng education and the Constitution. Those responsible were stil

unpuni shed.

86. Sri Lanka was in clear breach of the habeas corpus principle, having
detained 1,700 young Tamils without trial or investigation, 300 of themfor as
long as 5 years. Pax Romana, supported by several other NGOs, requested the
Sub- Commi ssion to nonitor the situation in Sri Lanka and to ensure that it
observed the international human rights standards on detainees and in
particular the right to habeas corpus.



E/ CN. 4/ Sub. 2/ 1997/ SR. 26
page 21

87. Two years earlier the Peruvian Governnment had comrtted itself to
reviewing its Amesty Act, which exenpted from prosecution and puni shnent
crimes against humanity in which State agents had been invol ved between 1980
and 1995. The Act, and its interpretative act, which denied access to proper
judicial renedies, were both still in force. Sonme of the perpetrators of
those crimes were currently suspected of new killings and tortures.

Pax Romana wondered whether the Peruvian CGovernnent took the United Nations
and its experts seriously.

88. He emphasi zed Pax Romana's support for measures to enforce States
liability and victinms' conpensation rights, in line with the enmerging

i nternational understanding that the victimof violations of human rights was
one of the actors, not one of the objects. The right to conpensation under an
international jurisdiction could achieve the end of inmpunity.

The neeting rose at 1.10 p. m




